Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
August 12, 2024

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, August 12, 2024 to transact business. Mr. Jordan called the
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. Gary Jordan and Guy Bainum answered
the roll call, Bari Henning was absent. Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning
Administrator Brian Tatman, Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy, Charlie Maklem, Jody Wilson, John Varney, Jim
Weaver, Denise DeMoss, Debbie Davidson, Amy Campbell, Dylan Arnett, Gary and Gwen Smith, Todd Michel, Brad
Combs, Fred Eichler, Pat Fisher, Tom Fisher, and Ed Boll.

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the minutes of the July 22, 2024 reqular meeting. Mr. Jordan second. All yeas.

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation
status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to
actual received, and the Trustees accepted it. Fiscal Officer Lefferson commented that the reported receipts included
$152,253 from an American Rescue Plan Act Ambulance Impacted Industry Grant administered through the State of Ohio
and additional national opioid settlement receipts of approximately $4,700.

Mr. Jordan motioned to approve the attached bills. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas.

Mr. Jordan said that solar energy is a hot topic right now. He stated that Mr. Maklem has been working with Fiscal Officer
Lefferson on the local tax revenue impact financial analysis for The Clear Mountain Energy solar project proposed for part of
Williamsburg Township. He said we continue to partner with Batavia and Jackson Townships in regard to the project and
reiterated that Joe Speeg is our liaison for this project. Mr. Jordan said the Township has made moves to stop solar projects
50 megawatts and above but Savion (Clear Mountain Energy) was grandfathered. He stated that the document addressing
solar projects less than 50 megawatts was with the prosecutor for approval. Mr. Jordan said he was not opposed to residential
solar or partnering with businesses on solar for projects like the Cincinnati Zoo has. He is concerned about the Route 32
corridor. Mr. Lefferson said he and Trustee Bainum and Trustee Henning attended the local hearing on Clear Mountain
Energy Center August 1%. Mr. Maklem was given the floor for a presentation on a Clear Mountain Energy Center Financial
Analysis (the presentation has been posted on the Township website under Minutes). The presentation was geared toward the
parcels of land related to the project that were in Williamsburg Township. Mr. Maklem stated the data used in the analysis
was pulled from the Clermont County Auditor’s website where possible and information put out by Clear Mountain Energy.
Mr. Maklem said that in estimating tax revenue for alternative uses for the property certain assumptions had to be made such
as commercial property value per acre and residential housing cost and density. He discussed his basis for these assumptions.
In summary, the presentation showed the Township receives approximately $1,800 in taxes annually from the parcels
currently as agriculture use. As best that could be determined, the Clear Mountain Energy solar project would generate
approximately $31,000 annually. These parcels used for a commercial business project would generate an estimated
$189,000 annually (given the assumptions discussed) and the parcels used for a residential development would generate an
estimated $297,000 annually (given the assumptions discussed). Mr. Maklem said in his opinion the parcels being discussed
are prime for commercial development and referred back to a map from earlier in the presentation. He mentioned that the
Clermont County CIC (an economic development tool for the County to facilitate new industrial and commercial
development) recently purchased parcels next to the proposed Clear Mountain site. Mr. Maklem said another thing to
consider is all the dollars that are being spent on SR 32 from Eastgate through Bauer Road to Mt. Orab which makes the area
attractive for commercial development. Mr. Arnett asked if there was a set percentage as far as breakout in tax revenue
between Fire & EMS, General Fund, and Roads and Bridges. Mr. Maklem explained how inside millage was distributed per
the state and then specific levy revenue could only be used for the specific fund as voted on, for example Fire & EMS. Mr.
Weaver asked about tax revenue from the solar project. Mr. Maklem stated it was a 35-year tax abatement with revenue
coming from PILOT (payment in lieu of taxes) payments. There was a question asked if the residential development
included assumptions for roads and other space requirements. Mr. Maklem responded not directly, but that the house value
used was conservative to offset. There was a question raised on commercial development what if the business leaves. Mr.
Maklem stated there still is some level of improved land value. It was also stated that commercial development means jobs.
Mr. Combs stated that these were projected numbers and may not happen. Mr. Jordan said we are trying to do what is right
for the Township, schools, and Village. Mr. Combs said the Clear Mountain Solar Farm would be built in about 18 months
and have an immediate revenue impact. Mr. Jordan said it is also about what we leave behind. Mr. Weaver said that from
October to March this area has a lot of gray days making solar panels only 40% efficient. Mr. Michel, Business Manager,
Electricians IBEW Local 212, said he was not a Clermont County resident but the 40% efficiency comment was not right.
Mr. Boll asked about the Clear Mountain Solar Ohio Power Siting Board Hearing in Columbus September 101, Mr.
Lefferson said he may attend, will not speak but may supply a written response in advance. Mr. Jordan said we want to
develop the 32 corridor. Mr. Jordan stated he was in the UAW for 43 years. He said he is interested in jobs with benefits and



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
August 12, 2024

the best return for the community on the 32 corridor. Mr. Tatman said on the less than 50 megawatt solar rules we are trying
to learn from all the townships. Mr. Jordan said some people are adamant against solar and some are for it.

Mr. Smith said he lives on Ireton Road and on the east side of the road the blacktop drops off. He believes it is a culvert
issue. He indicated the Township said they were going to fix it and never did. Mr. Jordan said they would get his phone
number after the meeting and look into it.

Mr. Varney said he is responsible for looking over 26 to 27 family graves in the Williamsburg Cemetery. He asked if the
Township had looked into getting an outside service to maintain the cemetery. He mentioned tree issues and said things are
not getting done. He produced a piece of chipped stone and indicated it was off his father’s headstone. Mr. Varney said he
did not know whether this was due to the lack of the right equipment or lack of caring. He said it was not real good and a
pitiful sight. Mr. Jordan said the Township owns three cemeteries. He said they recently purchased a church building
(dilapidated) and had it demolished on one site and that the Township was going to pave the gravel road in the Williamsburg
Cemetery. He said any issues may be partly staffing, two prominent individuals left in the Maintenance/Cemetery
Departments. Mr. Jordan said there is room for improvement. Mr. Varney said this has been going on for 20 years and that
Mr. Whiteman left it well. Mr. Jordan said we are not making excuses. Mr. Varney ask if it was too much. Mr. Jordan said
the Township prefers to do the work internally. Mr. Varney said maybe the Township should release digging the footers to
Hirons like other places do. Mr. Jordan said we have had a number of funerals including weekends and there is a lot to it.
Mr. Jordan said we will do better, it is important. Mr. Varney discussed some tree issues in the old part of the cemetery in
particular one over his father’s stone. Mr. Jordan said we will address it.

Ms. Davidson stated she was from Batavia Township and was in favor of the solar project. She mentioned the plans for the
use of agri tech or agriculture at the solar site. Mr. Jordan said we are trying to watch everything and appreciate your
position.

Mr. Arnett said there was discussion earlier in the meeting about with solar you are using the land and starting a better
revenue stream quicker with payments over 35 years, but he indicated it would take 185 years to match the revenue of the
land used other ways.

Ms. Wilson said she was against solar. She indicated she felt the Township’s approach to solar was like a dog chasing its tail.
Ms. Wilson said in the June 24™ minutes Mr. Henning stated he was not in favor of solar projects. She said the July 8™
Minutes stated Mr. Henning was not totally against it. Ms. Wilson said she does not get desired answers. There was mention
of the Trustees role versus Joe Speeg. She indicated when she brought up the timeline and asked where the Township was on
the resolution, she finally got answers. She said in Tate Township the Nestlewood solar project caused $255,000 damage to
the roads. Mr. Jordan said be specific to Williamsburg Township. Mr. Jordan said the Trustees do run our business but Mr.
Speeg is our liaison (for the Clear Mountain Energy project). Mr. Jordan said a resolution is in front of the prosecuting
attorney and we will continue to work through the process. Ms. Wilson said her concern was contracts could be written up
right now. Ms. Wilson said a motion should be made to freeze solar and wind up to 50 megawatts. She said other townships
have done this and been approved by legal counsel. She said as the Township indicated it would be October or November
before the resolution addressing smaller solar and wind projects is finalized. Ms. Wilson said a Zoning Commission meeting
should be at a time when people can attend. There will also be a Trustee meeting at the regular time so everyone can listen.
Ms. Wilson said she emailed the Trustees a video link to the July 31% Tate Township special meeting regarding their solar
resolution on August 9" and did not get any response. Mr. Lefferson said that was Friday. Mr. Bainum said he did take the
solar discussion very seriously and looked at part of the video over the weekend and would review the rest today. He said
thank you for coming out. Mr. Varney indicated he felt Ms. Wilson was shut down on bringing up Tate Township and that
comparisons may be helpful. Mr. Jordan said they do fine things in Tate Township; we look at a lot and then create our own
document. Mr. Bainum said we have been involved with Bethel-Tate too.

Ms. Campbell stated she was from Tate Township. She said she spoke with Joe Speeg who was open. Ms. Campbell
indicated that the Trustees were responsible for the process. She said Williamsburg Township can use other documents. Mr.
Bainum said he agreed. It was stated we need to be careful how we write these resolutions. There was discussion about the
time line for the resolution. Mr. Jordan said we are a poor Township and we use the Prosecuting Attorneys Office to review.
Ms. Campbell presented the Trustees and Fiscal Officer a document and said we should review it with the prosecutor’s
office.

Mr. Fisher asked if letters could still be written in regard to the Clear Mountain Energy project. Mr. Lefferson said yes you
can still write letters up until the September hearing.



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
August 12, 2024

Mr. Michel said he was with Electricians IBEW Local 212 with 200 members in Clermont County. He said he was originally
here to discuss the solar project but would shift his discussion to economic development and prevailing wage. Mr. Michel
said the electrical contractor working at the Purina plant was from out of town and workers were not making local wages. He
asked the Trustees to consider putting in prevailing wage language in tax agreements on future economic development. Mr.
Jordan said he agreed with competitive wages. Mr. Jordan asked about Ohio laws and said we were unaware of the Purina
situation. Mr. Michel said it was within the law. He said he had no problem with out of state as long as it was prevailing
wage.

Zoning Report
Mr. Tatman provided a report. He indicated on July 30, 2024 he was at court for the airsoft gun park and our attorney and the

owners came to an agreement to become compliant before he can use the airsoft field again. Mr. Tatman stated the following
week he met with Mr. Boyd who is the grandson of Ms. Conway who owns the property and explained to him what he needs
to do. In that conversation Mr. Boyd stated there was a disagreement over the property line. Mr. Tatman informed him he
should have that surveyed so he knew where he could place his structures on the property. Mr. Tatman indicated that Mr.
Boyd understood what he needed to do and said he will be back when he is ready to file for permits. Mr. Tatman stated he
and a couple of zoning commission members will have a pre-application conference with a property owner over a zone
change this week. Mr. Tatman said he sent out some courtesy letters for properties to be cleaned up. He checked them and
only one cleaned the property up, so he will be sending out violation letters this week. These are mainly junk cars sitting on
properties. Mr. Tatman said he has noticed the high grass areas need to be sent letters again. He indicated he would send
these letters at the same time. Mr. Jordan asked if a process for charging on nuisance properties has been formalized yet. Mr.
Tatman said no.

Cemetery and Maintenance Report
Mr. Tatman provided a report. The Township received the Chloride Reduction Grant (road salt improvements) from the
Ohio EPA for $44,500. Mr. Tatman said they have been setting foundation forms at all the cemeteries again and will be
pouring them this week. He indicated they have started mowing along the roads again and cutting brush back. The area by
the bridge on Musgrove Road has been done as well. Mr. Tatman said we need to start thinking about road repairs for 2025
and a budget. Clermont County needs to know a budget amount by September 3, 2024. By October 4™ they need a list of
which roads the Township wants to repair. Mr. Tatman said his thought is to pave Coon Avenue and Sally Drive, then the
following year do Ashton Road. He indicated he was trying to be budget conscious because we may need a new 1-ton dump
truck next year. Mr. Tatman said Ireton Road will be closed by Clermont County on August 20 and 21, 2024 during 8 am to
4 pm. Mr. Tatman said he was contacted by Ashley Scott of Todd’s Run Foster Road requesting a speed limit sign be
installed on their road. Mr. Tatman explained to her that if a road is not posted it is 55 mph. In their conversation Ms. Scott
said it used to be 25 mph. Mr. Tatman informed her that was on the part of the road in the Village. He also discussed with
her the procedure to have a speed changed, indicating he would check to see if that procedure has changed recently. Mr.
Jordan said he would check on whether the Township or residents’ petition. Mr. Jordan said the Township typically spends
$100,000 to $130,000 a year on paving roads. Mr. Lefferson said he and Mr. Tatman had discussed the paving budget for
next year. Mr. Bainum asked Mr. Tatman to check on Ireton Road and the trees in the Cemetery.

Emergency Services Report
Chief McCarthy provided a report. There were 44 Fire and 102 EMS runs for the month of July. Chief McCarthy said in
regard to community participation the department was involved in National Night Out, station tours for the summer camp
kids from the YMCA, and CPR training for the youth football coaches. Recent trainings included vehicle fire training and
swimming pool emergencies. Chief McCarthy recommended we sponsor Colton Seigel one of our volunteer members for his
Fire 1 and 2 certifications through Southern Hills. The total cost for the class is $3,725. When the class is passed, we will be
able to submit for some grant money from the State Fire Marshal to recuperate most of the costs. Mr. Bainum motioned to
authorize payment for Fire 1 and 2 classes through Southern Hills for Colton Seigel at a cost of $3,725. Mr. Jordan second.
All yeas. Mr. Bainum thanked Chief McCarthy for the department’s participation in the Bill Brewer fund raiser Friday night.

Mr. Boll asked Mr. Tatman about a meeting with Clermont County Economic Development. Mr. Tatman said it was an
informational meeting at their office, not an open meeting. Mr. Boll said he had not seen public discussion about the
Clermont County CIC’s recent purchase. It was stated that this is recent and may just be a timing issue.

Mr. Lefferson said LK Tech provides our information technology support and recently informed us our services need to
move from a server environment to the Cloud/web by year end. We will need to migrate our cemetery software to a web-
based product. Mr. Lefferson said this is time sensitive and he signed a quote for $1,238.30 for a computer and software
audit. We will also have future cost associated with the migration and will have to purchase a cemetery software web
application or server.



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
August 12, 2024

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 9:00 p.m. Mr. Jordan second. All yeas.

Fiscal Officer Chairperson



